
Business Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Date: Tuesday, 12 July 2016
Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Patrick Sebastian
Tel: 0151 691 8424
e-mail: patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF 
INTEREST/PARTY WHIP 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement.

3. MINUTES 

Note: Minutes of the Policy and Performance - Regeneration and 
Environment Committee meeting held on 2 March 2016 are to be 
considered for approval at the meeting of Council on 11 July 2016.

Public Document Pack



4. NOTICE OF MOTION: SETTING CLEAR TARGETS FOR WIRRAL 
WATERS - REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 14 MARCH 

(Pages 1 - 4)

At the meeting of the Council held on 14 March 2016 (minute 119 (1) 
refers), the attached Notice of Motion proposed by Councillor Phil 
Gilchrist and seconded by Councillor Dave Mitchell was referred by the 
Mayor to the Performance Regeneration and Environment Committee 
for consideration (subsequently referred to this Committee by Council 
27 June 2016).

In accordance with Standing Order 7 (6), Councillor Gilchrist has been 
invited to attend the meeting in order for him to be given an opportunity 
to explain the Motion.

5. NOTICE OF MOTION: REDUCING PEDESTRIAN CASUALTIES IN 
WIRRAL - REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 14 MARCH 

(Pages 5 - 6)

At the meeting of the Council held on 14 March 2016 (minute 119 (3) 
refers), the attached Notice of Motion proposed by Councillor Pat 
Cleary and seconded by Councillor Phil Gilchrist was referred by the 
Mayor to the Policy and Performance Regeneration and Environment 
Committee for consideration (subsequently referred to this Committee 
by Council 27 June 2016).

In accordance with Standing Order 7 (6), Councillor Cleary has been 
invited to attend the meeting in order for him to be given an opportunity 
to explain the Motion.

6. TRANSFORMING WIRRAL 
(Pages 7 - 12)

7. DISASTER RECOVERY SCRUTINY REVIEW 

Report to follow.

8. STREET LIGHTING - SCOTTISH POWER PERFORMANCE 
(Pages 13 - 18)

9. RESIDENT PARKING POLICY 
(Pages 19 - 26)

10. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY - VERBAL 
UPDATE 

11. 2015/16 REGENERATION % ENVIRONMENT AND 
TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES DIRECTORATE PLAN 
CLOSEDOWN REPORTS 

(Pages 27 - 58)



12. POLICY INFORM: BUSINESS 
(Pages 59 - 78)

13. APPOINTMENT OF THE HIGHWAYS REPRESENTATION PANEL 
(Pages 79 - 82)

14. SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME REPORT 
(Pages 83 - 88)

15. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 1) 

16. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC 

The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information.

RECOMMENDED – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the following items of business, on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
by the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The public interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion.

17. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR 
(PART 2) 



This page is intentionally left blank



SETTING CLEAR TARGETS FOR WIRRAL WATERS              
(Civic Mayor to refer to Policy and Performance Regeneration and 
Environment Committee)

Proposed by: Cllr Phil Gilchrist
Seconded by: Cllr Dave Mitchell

Council notes that the planning permission for Wirral Waters was granted in August 
2010.  At that time, the report of the Director of Technical Services advised Members 
that a planning permission was sought that could be implemented over 25 years and 
that development on the entire proposal might take 30-40 years.

Council recognises that the relevant planning agreements were concluded during 
2012 and that a number of projects have been completed or planning permissions 
have been granted, or are in hand.

Council suggests that it would be prudent and timely to receive a presentation from 
Peel setting out the way in which the development is taking place, what has been 
achieved and what the realistic prospects and timescales are for further stages.  
Officers should, as part of this, set out how the plans for the cross-docks routes are 
linked in to this overall view.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Amendment to Notice of Motion

The Council (14 March 2016) was also requested to consider the following 
amendments, submitted in accordance with Standing Order 12(1) and (9)

Notice of Motion No. 8 – SETTING CLEAR TARGETS FOR WIRRAL WATERS

Amendment

Proposed by Councillor Chris Blakeley
Seconded by Councillor Lesley Rennie

Insert the following at the end of the original Notice of Motion: 

Council notes that Peel Holdings have been willing to engage with Members, often 
on an ad-hoc basis, most recently with Councillor Chris Blakeley and former 
councillor Ian Lewis, but believes they must now engage with all relevant parties, 
and the wider Wirral Community (including residents, employers, business 
organisations, trade unions and potential suppliers).

Council would welcome and support a programme of public information and 
engagement.  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



REDUCING PEDESTRIAN CASUALTIES IN WIRRAL
(Civic Mayor to refer to Policy and Performance Regeneration and 
Environment Committee)

Proposed by: Cllr Pat Cleary
Seconded by: Cllr Phil Gilchrist

Council notes that the Wirral Plan ' A 2020 Vision' Phase 1 states
'we will continue to invest in our highways, keeping Wirral moving and making sure 
our road network Is safe and well maintained; always remembering our duty to 
residents in regard to road safety'.

And that, under Pledge 13 on page 41 further states,....
'By the end of March 2016, we will...Develop a new road Safety strategy, based on 
detailed insight'.

Council understands that the Wirral Pedestrians Association has recently carried out 
their own comprehensive audit of road injuries and casualties in Wirral. They 
expressed considerable concern about the relatively high rate of pedestrian 
casualties in Wirral which they placed in the bottom third of local authorities for 
pedestrian serious injuries. For child pedestrians, they placed Wirral in the bottom 
fifth. The report questioned the level of attention being given to pedestrian safety by 
Council officers and the police.

Council requests that this audit should be considered by officers and that the issues 
raised should be used to inform the promised insight. The issues raised include due 
attention to illegal parking on footways and the placing of A Boards on footways, 
along with better co-ordination with the police where appropriate.

As part of this process Council requests officers to consider the approaches such as 
these –

'A safe system approach to road safety in Bristol; A ten year Plan 2015 - 2024
'Road safety strategy; Consultation Version (July 2015) Birmingham City Council
The phased extension of 20 MPH Zones in Cheshire West and Chester.

Accordingly the Cabinet Member be requested to
a. report on the production of the new road safety strategy
b. explain how the concerns of the Pedestrians Association can be properly taken 
into account to the Regeneration and Environment Policy and Performance 
Committee

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2016

REPORT TITLE TRANSFORMING WIRRAL
REPORT OF Michele Duerden – Senior Manager Transformation 

& Improvement

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides a proposed approach to pre-decision scrutiny of proposals for new 
business models. 

New business models are being developed for Council Services to deliver Wirral’s 20 
pledges, respond to stakeholder views and provide the financial savings required.  

A briefing session on alternative delivery will be available to all Members on 20th July 
2016. This session will provide an overview of the different types of alternative delivery 
models and their relevance and appropriateness to different services.
 
Pre-decision scrutiny of proposals for new business models enables Members to engage 
in reviewing transformation proposals in line with the need for Council to radically change 
the way services are delivered to secure 2020 outcomes.

This matter affects all Wards within the Borough.

This is not a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S

It is recommended that;

a) The Committee includes pre-decision scrutiny of proposals for new business 
models as part of the scrutiny work programme as they become available

b) Committee to agree the appropriate scrutiny approach to review proposals as 
they are brought forward, providing pre-decision scrutiny against the agreed 
principles for service models

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Outline Transformation Approach (Item 5 - Cabinet 21st March 2016) sets out 
the principles of a new approach to transformation for the Council; which will ensure 
the organisation is best equipped to achieve the Pledges committed to in the Wirral 
Plan. The report sets out how the new transformation programme would be taken 
forward, including new models for service delivery.

1.2 Elected Member engagement in this programme is paramount. Pre-decision 
scrutiny of proposals for new service models enables Members to be fully engaged 
in reviewing transformation proposals ensuring that Elected Members are central to 
supporting, overseeing and promoting the Council’s transformation agenda.

1.3 A briefing session will be facilitated on 20th July 2016, open to all Members. This 
session will provide an overview of different delivery models and their 
appropriateness to different services. Awareness of the range of different delivery 
models will allow Members to provide an informed consideration of transformation 
proposals.

1.4 Proposals may be brought forward for pre-decision scrutiny throughout the year. It 
is recommended that the Committee retains sufficient flexibility in the work 
programme to scrutinise proposals as they arise. 

1.5 Members should give consideration as to whether the delivery options developed 
for Council services embody quality, efficiency, local employment, equality and 
diversity. Each model will be individually developed and scrutinised. New models 
should be evaluated in line with the principles provided at Appendix 1.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The Cabinet Member for Transformation and Leisure has identified the opportunity 
for pre-decision scrutiny to be undertaken.   

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Wirral Plan sets out a vision for Wirral: a set of 20 Pledges which will be 
achieved over the next five years to improve the lives of Wirral residents. In order to 
achieve these ambitions, the Council needs to modernise and work in a completely 
different way, and ensure it has the right culture, abilities, skills and approach to 
deliver the 2020 vision for Wirral. 

3.2 In order to deliver this plan Wirral has committed to delivering a modern public 
service and organising ourselves to deliver our aims. The Outline Transformation 
Approach (Item 5 - Cabinet 21st March 2016) report set out how the two core 
themes would be taken forward: (1) a new transformation programme, working to 
develop new models for service delivery and (2) the implementation of a new 
operating model. The themes are being developed and implemented concurrently, 
ensuring that the Council is able to deliver change at pace and continue to deliver 
positive outcomes to improve the quality of life for Wirral residents. 

Page 8



3

3.3 The transformation programme and the development of new models for service 
delivery have now commenced. In order to drive major improvements and 
efficiencies appropriate delivery options for a range of services are being designed, 
these will need to be negotiated and implemented in order to promote innovation 
and improve customer experience. As part of this work it is expected that some 
services will be re-organised and grouped with other services with shared 
outcomes.

3.4 A standard, robust and detailed approach to proposal development and options 
appraisal has been embedded ensuring any proposals for change are robustly 
evidenced and aligned to the agreed principles. Comprehensive programme 
management methodologies will ensure all transformation activities support the 
delivery of the 20 pledges. 

3.5 New business models will enable long term sustainable services for Wirral. The 
delivery options which will be developed for Council services will embody quality, 
efficiency, local employment, equality and diversity. They will drive an efficient, 
commercial and value-driven approach to public services. One size will not fit all; 
each model will be individually developed and evaluated in line with these 
principles, which have been provided in full at Appendix 1, and will guide the 
organisation in our approach to the design of new models, as well as aid Members 
in their democratic engagement in the process.

3.6 It is proposed that as each model is developed pre-decision scrutiny is completed 
ensuring that Elected Members are fully engaged in supporting, overseeing and 
promoting the Council’s transformation agenda

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

     There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

There are no resource implications relating to this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

The Centre for Public Scrutiny highlights the need for scrutiny to engage in 
reviewing transformation proposals in line with the need for Council’s to radically 
change the way services are delivered. 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

The Council is required to consult with the Trade Unions and affected staff on 
proposed changes to role and responsibilities, structures and services.

Page 9



4

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

No EIA has been undertaken relating to the subject of this report because there is 
no relevance to equality at this time.

REPORT AUTHOR: Michele Duerden
Senior Manager - Transformation & Improvement
telephone:  (0151) 691 8440
email:   micheleduerden@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Principles for Service Models

REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 10

mailto:micheleduerden@wirral.gov.uk


5

APPENDIX 1 - PRINCIPLES FOR SERVICE MODELS – POLICY & ETHICAL

Principle Evaluation

Achieves the ambition and vision set 
out in the
Wirral Plan and associated pledges

Must be able to demonstrably deliver 
Wirral Plan pledges.

Achieves improved outcomes for Wirral
residents, businesses

Measurable outcomes linked to the 
Pledges and
Strategies

Service design reflects the views of 
residents,
businesses

Appropriate level of consultation; use of
published material e.g. customer insight

Delivers savings or reduces the burden 
to the
Council’s net revenue funding

Achieve savings / reduce operating costs 
for the
Council / or reduce demand

Council retains robust accountability 
and
governance arrangements

Appropriate governance/ contract 
management arrangements are in place.

Resilience and flexibility to emerging 
issues in
service delivery

Ability to respond to changing statutory 
duties/
future opportunities for service delivery
Ability to adjust in a timely manner to 
political direction/legislative or procedural 
changes.

Partners and local businesses believe 
the
Council is easy to do business with

Regular engagement takes place with 
partners and local businesses to develop 
joined-up approach.

Promotes equality and diversity Promotes equality and diversity amongst 
its residents and workforce through 
undertaking robust equality impact 
assessment.

Impact on employment and the local 
economy

Availability of training and development 
opportunities.
Secures commitment to sustainable local 
employment.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL
BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2016

SUBJECT: Street Lighting – Scottish Power 
Performance

WARD/S AFFECTED: All Wards

REPORT OF: Mark Smith, Head of Environment and 
Regulation

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER: 

Councillor Stuart Whittingham, Cabinet 
Member for Highways and Infrastructure

KEY DECISION?  No

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The majority of the Council’s 38,000 street lights are directly connected to the 

electrical mains and, as a result, the electricity network operator for Wirral is 
directly involved with any disconnection or connection of the street light to the 
mains. The report sets out the nature and extent of the relationship with the 
electrical network operator, Scottish Power, and their performance in providing 
the required service to the Council.

1.2 The maintenance of highways, including street lighting, is a statutory duty for 
the Council as highway authority.

2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 SP Distribution Ltd and SP Manweb Plc. (collectively branded as SP Energy 

Networks), are the Licenced Distribution Network Operators (LDNO) serving 
South and Central Scotland and Merseyside, Cheshire and North Wales 
respectively. The LDNOs distribute electricity to a range of customers 
comprising domestic, commercial and industrial, from a combined Distribution 
System of 65,000 km of underground cables and 47,000 km of overhead lines. 

2.2 Under the Electricity Act 1989, Ofgem is responsible for granting licences for 
the purposes of the distribution of electricity. LDNOs are obliged to comply with 
the licence conditions contained within the distribution licence. The LDNOs then 
allow the Council to connect our highway lighting asset to this network via 
metered or un-metered supplies on the provision we meet, and adhere to, 
certain conditions.

2.3 Ofgem has worked closely with the industry to develop guaranteed standards of 
performance for new connections to metered and unmetered electricity 
connections services provided by LDNOs. The purpose of the standards is to 
ensure that customers, including the Council, who source connections from 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



LDNOs, are guaranteed a good level of service. The guaranteed standards that 
have been developed are backed up by a licence condition which sets a 
performance target of 90% which will apply across the standards.

2.4 As part of this licence (Standard Licence Condition 15A), SP Energy Networks 
have service level standards which are set and regulated by Ofgem. Standard 
Licence Condition 15A provides guidance to LDNOs regarding the Electricity 
Distribution Licence and the connections guaranteed standards of performance 
regime, Electricity (Guaranteed Standards of Performance) Regulations 2010, 
as revised in 2015.

2.5 Exemptions and/or extensions to these standards can be requested from either 
the LDNO or the Council. Under certain operational and/or technical 
circumstances, and where an exemption is applied and agreed, then the 
requirements to make a penalty payment if the agreed date (or the prescribed 
period) is not met is waived as compliance with the standard has been deemed 
to have been met. In these circumstances, covered in the Regulations, it allows 
the LDNO to extend an agreed date by a reasonable period. The LDNO still 
needs to deliver the service and the new extended date is then the date that the 
distributor must meet to comply with the Regulations. Failure to meet the new 
extended date would result in the appropriate penalty. In some circumstances, 
depending on the specific exemption invoked (such as the customer no longer 
wishing the Distributor to take any action) the LDNO would not be required to 
carry out the service request. 

2.6 The Council applied the penalty clause 8 times in 2013/14 and 13 times in 
2014/15 and recovered £4,020 from the LDNO as a result. A summary of the 
work issued to Scottish Power is shown in Table 1 below. 

Year Request issued to Scottish Power by the Council
2014/15  284 requests for work. 13 failed to meet the regulation 

standard time. As no request for an extension was applied
for these 13 service requests, a total penalty claim of 
£2170 was paid to the Council.

2015/16 181 requests for work. 9 requests for time extensions
received due to unforeseen operational issues and all have
been completed within the permitted time frame.

2016/17  To date 67 requests for work. 43 are still within the
permitted time for completion, and we have received
extension requests for 5 difficult locations.

Table1 – Requests for work issued to Scottish Power

2.7 It is necessary to take in to account third party works issued under 
our current Tri-Partite agreement with Jones Lighting, and facilitated on 
our behalf by BAM Nuttall, for works issued under Ofgem’s 
Competition in Connections arrangements. Although any works 
instructions issued still technically fall under the same service level standards, 
independent connection providers (ICP’s) are not bound by the same legislation 

Page 14



as the distribution network operator (LDNO). The benefit of this method is 
significant cost savings to the authority for works issued this way, but has a 
disadvantage of while we can complain, and even terminate an agreement, we 
cannot penalise the ICP financially for late completion.

 
2.8 At present our LDNO (Scottish Power) are providing good performance with 

delivery and give no overall cause for concern. Once work is issued to Scottish 
Power, it very rarely remains unresolved for an abnormal length of time.

2.9 To date £4,020 (in 2013/14 and 2015/15) has been recovered in late 
completion penalties where no exemptions have been requested. This level of 
non-compliance is a small quantity based on the number of requests issued to 
them and there has been no non-compliance in 2015/16 or so far this year.

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
3.1 The ability of the Council to maintain its street lighting can be directly affected 

by the performance of Scottish Power, and the fines imposed for a low number 
of non-compliances in 2013/14 and 2014/15, and the improved performance in 
subsequent years, has addressed that particular risk

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 None – this report provides an overview of performance only.

5.0 CONSULTATION 
5.1 None – this report provides an overview of performance only.

6.0 OUTSTANDING PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ACTIONS 
6.1  None.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
7.1 None.

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS 
8.1 None arising specifically from this report.

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
9.1 The maintenance of highways, including street lighting, is a statutory duty for 

the Council as highway authority.

10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 

equality?

(b) No because there is no relevance to equality.

Page 15



11.0 CARBON REDUCTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
11.1 None specific to this report.

12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
12.1 None specific to this report

13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 It is recommended that the Committee:

(i)    Note the report; and

(ii)   Provide views on the performance of Scottish Power in order that improvements 
       to the street lighting service can be made. 

14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
14.1 Consideration of the performance in delivering service outcomes, and 

improvements which can be made, is an important part of the role of the 
Committee.

REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Clifford
Senior Manager (Highways and Transport)

telephone (0151) 606 2479
Email robertclifford@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES
None

BACKGROUND PAPERS/REFERENCE MATERIAL
The Electricity Act 1989 Standard conditions of the Electricity Distribution Licence 
can be viewed at 

https://epr.ofgem.gov.uk//Content/Documents/Electricity%20Distribution%20Consoli
dated%20Standard%20Licence%20Conditions%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf

The Electricity (Standards of Performance) Regulations 2010 can be viewed at

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/698/pdfs/uksi_20100698_en.pdf

and the recent, revised, standards, the Electricity (Standards of Performance) 
Regulations 2015 can be viewed at
 
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/2015/04/notification_revised_stand
ards_2015.pdf

Page 16

mailto:robertclifford@wirral.gov.uk
https://epr.ofgem.gov.uk//Content/Documents/Electricity%20Distribution%20Consolidated%20Standard%20Licence%20Conditions%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
https://epr.ofgem.gov.uk//Content/Documents/Electricity%20Distribution%20Consolidated%20Standard%20Licence%20Conditions%20-%20Current%20Version.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/698/pdfs/uksi_20100698_en.pdf
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/2015/04/notification_revised_standards_2015.pdf
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/2015/04/notification_revised_standards_2015.pdf


Ofgem’s Competition in connections to electricity distribution systems - Decision 
Document can be viewed at

https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/2005/02/9808-6005.pdf

BRIEFING NOTES HISTORY

Briefing Note Date
None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Regeneration and Environment Policy and 
Performance Committee – Street Lighting Update

2 March 2016

Page 17

https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/sites/default/files/docs/2005/02/9808-6005.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12 JULY 2016

REPORT TITLE RESIDENT PARKING POLICY

REPORT OF HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT AND REGULATION

REPORT SUMMARY
This report reviews the current policy for new resident parking schemes and 
operation of existing schemes and highlights those areas which have been identified 
as issues by residents, ward members and/or officers.

The report highlights that there are areas where the current policy should be 
investigated in more detail and consideration given to appropriate amendments.

This matter affects all Wards within the borough and is a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S
Committee is requested to:

i) Note the content of this report.
ii) Consider the issues around the current policy on new and existing resident 

parking schemes, possibly via a Task & Finish Group.

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
1.1 The current policy around new and existing resident parking schemes has 

been in place for several years and various issues in relation to it have been 
identified in that time.

1.2 The various issues and potential options are technically detailed and may 
benefit from a focussed “task and finish” working group to identify those 
options which could be taken forward as improvements to the existing policy.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
2.1 Taking no action.  This is not considered a suitable option given the issues 

that have been identified around the existing policy.

2.2 Developing a Cabinet Report for detailing the various issues and options and 
requesting consideration and a decision by members on suitable amendments 
to the policy.  This is not considered a suitable option given the scale and 
detail surrounding the various issues and options for improvement, which 
would benefit from more in-depth scrutiny and development with relevant 
member involvement and officer support before reporting options to Cabinet 
for a decision.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION
3.1 Resident parking schemes on Wirral has been the subject of a number of 

historic reports over several years, the most recent being to Cabinet on 16 
August 2007.  The current criteria for new resident parking schemes 
developed gradually over a number of iterations to the version in operation 
today which is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

3.2 The criteria pose various issues in respect of the practicalities of 
demonstrating compliance with the various thresholds, the resources and 
costs involved in that process and the difficulties for residents wishing to apply 
(including demonstrating initial support and also financing implementation).  
These issues are also noted in Appendix 1 to this report, in boxes below 
each criterion.

3.3 By way of confirmation of the difficulties residents face in demonstrating that 
they can achieve compliance with the criteria, no requests for new resident 
parking schemes have been implemented since the introduction of the current 
policy despite numerous enquiries. The three schemes that have been 
implemented since the introduction of the current policy were initially 
proposed, supported and funded from sources other than the residents 
themselves and none of them meet the minimum 300 property criterion.  
Appendix 2 lists those three schemes with background information for each.

Page 20



3.4 Consequently, some members and residents have become increasingly 
frustrated with the difficulty in achieving their goal of implementing a new 
resident parking scheme in their road or neighbourhood.

3.5 As well as those issues around the criteria, there are other areas that would 
benefit from review such as visitor permits, which are currently restricted to 
one per property.  This can create difficulties for residents with more than one 
visitor who are then reliant on the goodwill of neighbours by borrowing 
additional permits from them.

3.6 In addition, the existing historic resident parking schemes introduced before 
2007 are administered and maintained free of charge to those benefitting from 
them.  This may be viewed as unfair in relation to those residents of new 
schemes implemented since 2007, for whom a permit fee is payable.  Also, 
with the reductions in Council income over recent and coming years, the 
administration and maintenance of the historic schemes will become more 
difficult and a greater strain on departmental resources that could otherwise 
be directed at highway and transport issues around road safety, congestion 
and economic development.

3.7 Beneficial updates to government regulations on signing and road markings 
for resident parking schemes are also difficult or impossible to take advantage 
of within existing historic schemes due to the resource issues mentioned in 
3.5, as is periodic review and amendment of those schemes to ensure that 
they continue to be relevant and not adversely affect adjacent residential 
roads outside of the schemes.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendation of this 

report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
5.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendation of this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
6.1 Existing staff resources would be used to provide officer support to any 

working group set up as a consequence of this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
7.1 Failure to review the policy and criteria will mean that the frustration of some 

members and residents at the shortcomings of the existing arrangements will 
continue and that the administration and maintenance of historic schemes will 
continue to draw on departmental resources that could otherwise be directed 
at highway and transport issues around road safety, congestion and economic 
development.

Page 21



8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
8.1 The extent of engagement / consultation to be carried out as part of any 

review of policy would be for the working group to consider.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 

equality?

9.2 No because there is no relevance to equality.  Blue (Disabled) Badge Holders 
are exempted from the requirement to display a resident permit. 

REPORT AUTHOR: Keith Rodgers 
Traffic Network Manager
telephone:  (0151) 606 2101
email:   keithrodgers@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
1. Resident Parking Criteria

2. New Resident Parking Schemes introduced since 2007

REFERENCE MATERIAL
None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

None

Page 22

mailto:keithrodgers@wirral.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

CRITERIA FOR THE INTRODUCTION AND OPERATION OF RESIDENT 
PARKING SCHEMES (Approved by Cabinet 28th March 2007).

An outline of issues is included in boxes below each criterion.

In deciding whether or not a scheme should be introduced, the desirability of the 
scheme should be measured against certain criteria guidelines to determine the 
need, the acceptability and its practicality.

a. Not less than 85% of the available kerbside space is occupied for more than six 
hours between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on five or more days a week from Monday to 
Saturday, and a bona fide need of residents is established. At least 50% of the 85% 
occupied kerbside space must be non-residents.

This is to ensure that before a scheme is considered, it is shown that the existing 
spaces are heavily used by non-residents and difficulty is experienced in finding a 
space on most days of the week.

Evidence gathering for this criterion is resource intensive in terms of the resources 
required to carry out a sufficient number of parking surveys each day over five (or 
more) days to establish whether the 85% threshold of occupied kerbside space is 
exceeded for more than six hours on each of those days.  In addition, the 50% 
threshold of non-residential parking is difficult or impossible to evidence without 
tracing vehicle ownership.

b. Not more than 50% of the car-owning residents have or could have parking 
available within the curtilage of their property or within 200 metres walking distance 
by way of rented garages or other off-street space.

This is to ensure that schemes are only introduced where a real need can be 
identified.

Evidence gathering for this criterion is difficult or impossible as it is not easy to 
ascertain how many residents are actually car owners and whether any of those that 
are car owners (but do not have visible driveways) have off-street parking available 
elsewhere within 200 metres.

Page 23



c. The normal daily demand for resident spaces can be met.

On roads with a carriageway width of less than 6.6m it is important to protect the 
remaining carriageway with parking restrictions so as to be able to maintain a 
relatively free flow of traffic and to protect the pavement (which is part of the 
highway) from being parked upon. This measure would be in the form of parking 
restrictions denoted by yellow lines and is recommended along one side of the road 
for roads supporting a resident parking scheme and having a carriageway width of 
less than 6.6m. This essential measure has implications on the ability of a road to 
meet the normal daily demand for resident spaces.

This criterion is difficult to evidence because assumptions have to be made about 
“normal daily demand for resident spaces”.  In some circumstances, it may be 
obvious that space is available (for example, in long roads with few houses), but in 
many cases residential car ownership & parking demand versus available kerbside 
parking space is not easy to quantify without making arbitrary assumptions.

d. The introduction of the scheme will not cause unacceptable problems in adjacent 
roads.

This criterion is subjective as a view would need to be taken on the level and location 
of displaced parking should a scheme go ahead and then consideration given as to 
the potential impact of that displaced parking in those locations.

e. The scheme is acceptable both to the Police and the operations of the emergency 
services.

This criterion is clear and can be evidenced.

f. The proposals are acceptable to the majority of the residents.

There must be a minimum of 80% support for the scheme from all residential 
properties within the scheme boundary (including nil returns). This is to ensure 
majority support from residents for the introduction of a scheme.

This criterion is clear and can be evidenced.  The threshold of 80% support can 
prove difficult for residents to achieve.

g. In areas where parking space is severely limited, the introduction of reserved 
parking does not seriously affect the commercial viability of the area.

Page 24



This criterion is subjective and reliant on taking a view about the proximity of a 
proposed scheme to local businesses, the type of businesses involved and the likely 
impact on that type of business of removing the ability for non-residential (potential 
customer?) parking.  The solution is relatively straight-forward if commercial viability 
is thought to be affected and involves allowing non-permit holders to park for a 
suitable limited period, although this does water down the effectiveness of the permit 
scheme in removing non-residential parking.

h. There must normally be a minimum of 300 residential properties within the 
proposed scheme. For schemes of less than 300 residential properties, there must 
be other waiting restrictions in the immediate vicinity.

This is to ensure that the enforcement of the scheme would be self-financing.

This criterion has loose wording, but the thresholds can be evidenced.  The 
“threshold” of 300 properties can prove difficult for residents to achieve.

Page 25



APPENDIX 2

NEW RESIDENT PARKING SCHEMES IMPLEMENTED SINCE SELF-FUNDING 
CRITERIA WAS AGREED IN MARCH 2007

Since the introduction of new criteria in 2007, three schemes have been 
implemented;

Manor Lane, Liscard
Introduced; September 2011
Involves nine properties opposite a primary school.  Introduced in conjunction with 
other traffic management as a road safety measure to reduce vehicle movements in 
the vicinity of the school.  Subject of a report to Highways and Traffic Representation 
Panel on 8 July 2010.  Financed by residents & school.

Heath Drive, Heswall
Introduced; April 2014
Involves 14 properties in a cul-de-sac adjacent to Heswall Medical Centre.  
Introduced as a road safety measure in relation to a planning condition attached to a 
development proposal to expand the Medical Centre (APP/12/01436 – delegated 
approval 5 February 2013).  Financed by the Medical Centre developer.

Virginia Road area, New Brighton
Introduced; July 2015
Involves approx. 280 properties between Virginia Road and Victoria Road.  
Introduced as part of highway improvements in New Brighton (including resurfacing 
of Marine Promenade), following public consultation on the proposed improvements.
Financed through the capital programme for the highway improvements.

As at April 2016, there are a total of 345 permits on issue for the above three 
schemes, at a rate of £10 per year = £3,450 per year.

Page 26



1

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2016

REPORT TITLE 2015/16 REGENERATION & ENVIRONMENT AND 
TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES DIRECTORATE 
PLAN CLOSEDOWN REPORTS

REPORT OF ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND STRATEGIC 
DIRECTOR TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES

REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the 2015/16 year-end position in relation to performance for the 
Regeneration & Environment and Transformation & Resources Directorate Plans.  March 
2016 marked the end of the planning cycle for the 2015/16 Corporate and Directorate 
Plans and as such, these act as closedown reports for both Plans.

The reports capture performance across a broad suite of performance indicators and 
Directorate projects.  At the beginning of the report, there is an overview which includes a 
summary analysis which also highlights the key achievements of the plans. 

Due to the new scrutiny arrangements, for this committee two Directorate Plan reports 
(Regeneration & Environment and Transformation & Resources) are included as both 
plans apply to the scope of the new committee.

RECOMMENDATION/S

 The Business Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers the contents of the 
Directorate Plan Closedown Reports and highlights any areas requiring further 
clarification or action.

Page 27

Agenda Item 11



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure Members of the Committee have the opportunity to review the delivery of 
the 2015/16 Regeneration & Environment and Transformation & Resources 
Directorate Plans.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

N/A

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Directorate Plans were developed in early 2015 and set out how the 
Directorates supported the objectives of the Corporate Plan 2015/16.  This included 
activities measured through a suite of performance indicators as well as a 
programme of Directorate Projects.  The reports included as Appendix 1 and 2, set 
out performance against these measures as at year end 31 March 2016.

3.2 Whilst the Corporate Plan 2015/16 (and supporting Directorate Plans) have been 
superseded by the Wirral Plan: A 2020 Vision, they still formed the basis of the 
2015/16 performance management framework. A new Performance Management 
Framework has been developed for the Wirral Plan effective from 1st April 2016.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 There are none arising from this report.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The reports have been reviewed by the Directorate Management Teams.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The reports are provided for information, there is no equality impact.

Page 28



3

REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Callon
Team Leader – Performance and Scrutiny
telephone:  (0151) 691 8379
email:   michaelcallon@wirral.gov

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – 2015/16 Regeneration and Environment Directorate Plan Closedown Report

Appendix 2 – 2015/16 Transformation and Resources Directorate Plan Closedown Report

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 29

mailto:michaelcallon@wirral.gov


This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX 1

2015-2016

Regeneration & Environment Directorate Plan

Year End Closedown Report

P
age 31



2

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Overview

2.1 Summary Analysis
2.2 Achievements
2.3 Challenges

3. Performance Reports

3.1 Performance Indicator and Projects Report
3.2 Financial Report

P
age 32



3

1. Introduction

This report sets out the year end position for the 2015/16 Regeneration and Environment Directorate Plan.  As this is the final year in the plan cycle, 
the report also acts as a close down report for the Directorate Plan.

The Regeneration and Environment Directorate Plan was developed in early 2015 as the Directorate’s contribution towards the delivery of the 
2015/16 Corporate Plan as approved by Council 8 December 2014.  The Directorate Plan was presented to the Regeneration and Environment Policy 
and Performance Committee on 30 March 2015.

The Directorate Plan set out how the Regeneration and Environment Directorate supported the objectives of the 2015/16 Corporate Plan.  This 
included activities measured through a suite of 18 performance indicators which included Directorate Projects.  This reports sets out performance 
against these measures as at year end 31 March 2016.  For the performance indicators, a detailed commentary is only provided against those 
indicators rated red or amber setting out the reasons for under-performance and what is being done to address it.

P
age 33



4

2. Overview

2.1 Summary Analysis

Green 79%

Amber
14%

Red
 7%

PI's RAG rating

64%
14%

22%

PI Direction of Travel

Delivered, 
100%

Projects Status

Ratings of the 14 reportable indicators:

 11  Green
   2  Amber 
   1  Red 

The condition of Wirral’s strategic road network 
deteriorated marginally but has remained within 
the top quartile nationally.

Road safety remained a concern as it failed to 
meet the Local Transport Plan (LTP) milestone.

Of the 14 measures where it is possible to 
indicate the Direction of Travel:

 9 Improved
 2 Sustained
 3 Deteriorated

Details of future monitoring of performance 
indicators have been included within the year-
end statements.   

Status for the 4 Projects:

 All Delivered

The outcomes achieved as a result of the 
projects, have been included within 3.1 
Performance Indicator and Projects Report. 

P
age 34



5

2.2 Achievements

 79% of the indicators met or exceeded the target set and 78% improved or were sustained during 2015/16

 Despite a marginal deterioration in Wirral’s strategic road network they have remained in the top quartile nationally and well within the Local 
Transport Plan (LTP) target of 4%.

 All four projects undertaken during 2015/16 were delivered on time and to budget.

 2015-16 saw another strong financial performance from the Regeneration & Environment Directorate.  Overall, the revenue outturn was 
£2.3m under the £89.5m budgetary target for the year. This position also included the achievement of £2.7m out of £2.9m of approved 
budget saving options.

2.3 Challenges

Although there has been an overall reduction in the number of people injured on Wirral’s roads of 8% over the past 12 months, there was an 
increase of 2% in the number of people killed and seriously injured.  Our continuing challenge to reduce the number of those killed or seriously 
injured on our roads is also reflected at a city region level and will no doubt be confirmed when the 2015 statistics are published by the 
Department for Transport (DfT) later this year. A Road Safety Plan has been developed at a City Region level and reviewing its progress will form 
part of the Members Workplan for 2016/17.

P
age 35



6

3. Performance Reports

3.1 Performance Indicator and Projects Report

2015-16 Regeneration & 
Environment Performance 
Indicators

Quarter 4

PI Ref PI Title

Year End 
Target 

2015/16
Actual Period DoT

Year-end Statement (Red or Amber)
Context (Green where provided)

RECP02

To maintain local 
environmental quality (LEQ) 
of litter, detritus, & graffiti in 
main gateways and shopping 
areas

93.5% 93.2%
Green

Apr-
Mar ↔  

This indicator will be slightly re-defined to become borough-wide and 
in 2016/17 will be reported through Wirral Plan reporting 
arrangements.

RECP03 Number of new affordable 
homes 250 298

Green
Apr-
Mar ↑ 

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

RECP04
Number of adaptations 
completed 2000 2700

Green
Apr-
Mar ↑ 

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

RECP05

Number of interventions to 
improve private rented sector 
properties 400 929

Green
Apr-
Mar ↑ This indicator will be monitored in a Service Plan from 2016/17.

RECP06

Increase the number of jobs 
created and safeguarded via 
Invest Wirral 975 1084

Green
Apr-
Mar ↑ 

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

RECP07 Gross Value Added per head 
of population £13,213 £13,589

Green 2014 ↑ 
In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

P
age 36



7

2015-16 Regeneration & 
Environment Performance 
Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statement (Red or Amber)
Context (Green where provided)

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

RECP08
Number of working age 
people claiming out-of-work 
benefits (economic in-activity)

13.6% 12.4%
Green 2015 ↑ 

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

REDP09
Reduce the number of people 
killed or seriously injured in 
road traffic accidents (KSI)

98 143
Red

Apr-
Mar 

(Police: 
Jan-Dec 
2015)

↓

The following road user groups have shown an increase during 2015 in 
the number of people sustaining KSI injuries compared to the average 
during 2012-2014:
Adult vehicle occupants (increase of 12 KSI in 2015 from average)
Motorcyclists (increase of 15 KSI in 2015 from average)
Adult pedestrians (increase of 3 KSI in 2015 from average)

Additional resources for education, enforcement & publicity will be 
made available in 2016/17 to target high (KSI) risk casualty groups.

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

REDP12
Number of empty properties 
returned to use or demolished 
through local authority action

260 289
Green

Apr-
Mar ↔  

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

REDP13 Number of homeless 
preventions 750 1338

Green
Apr-
Mar ↑ 

 In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

REDP15
% of Major Planning 
Applications determined 
within 13 weeks

60% 67%
Green

Apr-
Mar ↑ This indicator will be monitored in a Service Plan from 2016/17. 

REDP16 Total investment secured into 
Wirral developments £25M £43,450,331

Green
Apr-
Mar ↑ 

In 2016/17 this indicator will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

P
age 37



8

2015-16 Regeneration & 
Environment Performance 
Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statement (Red or Amber)
Context (Green where provided)

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

RECP18
Develop and deliver the 
Wirral Selective Licencing 
Scheme (WSLS)

100% 100%
Green

Apr-
Mar ↔  

Project delivered. The impact of delivering this project has been far-
reaching for residents in the affected areas with 600 residents so far 
who have directly benefitted from the advice, referrals and support 
provided by the Council and its partner agencies. Immediate health 
and safer homes benefits have included energy efficiencies, identifying 
the need for and the provision of heating grants, safety checks and 
referrals for welfare rights advice.

REDP19
Delivery of the Docks Bridges 
Replacement Major Scheme 
up to contract award stage

100% 95%
Green

Apr-
Mar ↔  

Project delivered. The delivery of this project has secured the 
appointment of a contractor to replace two strategically important 
highway bridges in Birkenhead; this will benefit all Wirral residents by 
reducing the number of future road closures or restrictions that would 
otherwise have been required and will support our continued 
ambitions for major regeneration and economic growth 
developments.

REDP20
Maintain the condition of 
Wirral’s strategic network – 
Principal Roads

1% 1.7%
Amber 2015 ↓

In 2016/17 these indicators will be reported through Wirral Plan 
reporting arrangements.

P
age 38



9

2015-16 Regeneration & 
Environment Performance 
Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statement (Red or Amber)
Context (Green where provided)

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

REDP21
Maintain the condition of 
Wirral’s strategic network – 
Non-principal Roads

1% 1.75%
Amber 2015 ↓

REDP22 Implementation of LED Street 
Lighting Project 100% 100%

Green
Apr-
Mar ↔  

Project delivered. The tangible benefits realised as a result of the roll-
out of LED streetlights across our strategic road network, involving 
7553 street light columns, will be the substantial reductions to the 
Council’s energy costs (of £768,000 by March 2019), a reduced carbon 
levy because of reduced carbon dioxide emissions and long term 
maintenance costs will be reduced because of longer burning hours 
than conventional units.  Once initial teething problems have been 
overcome residents will experience improved light output and less 
outages.

REDP23
Develop and deliver a master 
plan for Birkenhead Town 
Centre

100% 100%
Green

Apr-
Mar ↔  

Project delivered. The benefits of delivering this project will be the 
significant investment into the retail and commercial offer of central 
Birkenhead and the resulting new employment opportunities for the 
people of Wirral.

Direction of Travel (DoT) Key ↑ Performance Improving ↓ Performance 
Deteriorating ↔ Performance Sustained 

P
age 39



10

3.2 Financial Report

The Regeneration and Environment Directorate year end position produced an underspend of £2.3 million on the revised net budget as 
per the table below. In year revisions to the budget related mainly to capital financing adjustments and the allocation of remodelling 
savings.

Original 
Net 
Budget

Budget 
Changes 
In year

Revised 
Net 
Budget

Outturn Variance

£ms £ms £ms £ms £ms

R&E 90.3 -0.8 89.5 87.2 -2.3

The most significant element of the underspend related to savings incurred on the supported housing programme contracts (this was the 
delivery of 2016/17 savings early). Further savings arose from higher than expected levels of income in a number of services which offset 
an adverse variance for the Floral Pavilion.  

Savings agreed in setting the 2015/16 budget led to £3.1 million being removed from the directorate budget. The timing of delivery meant 
that the Street Works Permits saving won’t be achieved until 2016/17, whilst the Perch Rock car parking proposal was reversed. These 
savings were compensated for from underspends and increased income from elsewhere within the directorate which mitigated any 
shortfall and led to an overall underspend position for the directorate.  

Capital Programme Budget

The Capital Programme was amended during the year to reflect the inclusion of slippage from the 2014/15 programme and adjustments 
and re-profiling within the 2015/16 financial year. 

P
age 40



11

Regeneration and Environment
Capital 
Programme 
December 
2015

Outturn 
March 
2016

Variation

£ms £ms £ms
 Environment and Regulation 11.5 10.5 -1.0
 Housing 5.4 3.8 -1.6
 Regeneration 6.5 5.5 -1.0
 Total R&E Expenditure 23.4 19.8 -3.6

The largest element within Environment and Regulation section of the programme related to the installation of the LED lighting which 
commenced in mid-August and was substantially completed in March 2016. The outturn capital costs of £3.2 million further strengthen 
the value for money of the capital investment and future revenue savings will be generated.  The DfT highway maintenance allocation of 
£2.8 million was supplemented from the Council’s own Capital Programme with a further £500,000 for maintenance improvement 
schemes on unclassified and residential roads. The programme for the year resulted in the completion of 20 resurfacing schemes and 
one footway scheme on the Principal road network, 19 schemes on the Non-Principal Classified road network and 150 schemes on the 
Unclassified Road network. 
 
Within the Housing section of the programme £1.7 million of grant aid was provided for the provision of essential aids and adaptations 
giving disabled people better freedom of movement in and around their homes. The new house building programme has commenced 
with £0.5m invested during the year.

In terms of Regeneration over £5.2 million Regional Growth Fund and business investment grants have been allocated to date helping to 
create jobs and encourage the growth.

Some slippage has occurred on schemes such as the new house building scheme meaning the unused elements of the 2015/16 
programme will be re-profiled into 2016/17.

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX 2

2015-2016

Transformation and Resources Directorate Plan

Year End Closedown Report

P
age 43



2

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Overview

2.1 Summary Analysis
2.2 Achievements
2.3 Challenges

3. Performance Reports

3.1 Performance Indicator Report
3.2 Projects Report
3.3 Financial Report

P
age 44



3

1. Introduction

This report sets out the year end position for the 2015/16 Transformation and Resources Directorate Plan.  As this is the final year in the plan cycle, 
the report also acts as a close down report for the Directorate Plan.

The Transformation and Resources Directorate Plan was developed in early 2015 as the Directorate’s contribution towards the delivery of the 
2015/16 Corporate Plan as approved by Council 8 December 2014.  The Directorate Plan was presented to the Transformation and Resources Policy 
and Performance Committee on 30 March 2015.

The Directorate Plan set out how the Transformation and Resources Directorate supported the objectives of the Corporate Plan.  This included 
activities measured through a suite of 20 performance indicators as well as a programme of 12 Directorate Projects.  This reports sets out 
performance against these measures as at year end 31 March 2016.  For the performance indicators, a detailed commentary is only provided against 
those indicators rated red or amber setting out the reasons for under-performance and what is being done to address it.

P
age 45



4

2. Overview

2.1 Summary Analysis

Red, 21%

Amber, 
11%

Green, 
68%

PIs - RAG Rating

57%
14%

29%

PIs - Direction of Travel

Delivered, 
36%

Part 
delivered, 

7%

Not 
delivered, 

0%

Re-
defined, 

57%

Project Status

Ratings of the 19 reportable indicators:

 13  Green
 2    Amber 
 4    Red 

For indicators rated Amber and Red, the 
responsible officer has indicated action taken to 
get performance back on track within the Year-
end statement.  

Of the 14 measures where it is possible to 
indicate the Direction of Travel:

 8 Improving
 2 Deteriorating
 4 Sustained

Details of future monitoring of performance 
indicators have been included within the Year-
end statement.   

Status for the 14 Projects:

 5 Delivered
 1 Part Delivered
 8 Re-defined

The outcomes achieved as a result of the 
projects, together with continued monitoring of 
on-going projects has been included within 
progress update.

P
age 46



5

2.2 Achievements

 68% of the indicators met or exceeded the target set and 57% improved during 2015/16

 Performance Appraisals completed between April 15 - Mar 2016 improved by 29% compared to the previous year.

 Performance for Suppliers paid within 30 days has improved by 12% during 2015/16, with the monthly target being exceeded from December 
2015.

 There has been a 50% reduction in the number of general exception notices issued and a 37% reduction in the number of published 
supplementary agendas for Cabinet and Committee meetings during 2015/16, compared to the previous year.

 The monthly average number of days to accurately process benefit claims has fallen during 2015/16, with the targets being consistently met / 
exceeded from October 2015. 

2.3 Challenges

 2015/16 Sickness Absence is 1.63 days higher than target and 0.84 days higher than 2014/15.

 The calculation method used to monitor performance for spend allocation of Discretionary Housing Payment led to a Red rating, but the 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) grant funding was fully spent. It included a Local Authority contribution of £294k, which will be 
used to supplement the 2016/17 DWP Grant and support people who will face increasing difficulties with their housing costs. The future 
calculation method for monitoring performance will be reviewed for 2016/17 onwards. 

 For 2015/16 targets were missed for the recovery of Council Tax (by 0.3%) and National Non-Domestic Rates (by 1.1%). The collection of these 
will be monitored closely during 2015/16.

P
age 47



6

3. Performance Reports

3.1 Performance Indicator Report

2015-16 T&R DP 
Performance Indicators

Quarter 4

PI Ref PI Title

Year End 
Target 

2015/16 Actual Period DoT

Year-end Statements (Red or Amber)
Context (Green/where provided) 

TRCP02
Projected Delivery of 
Council budget 
savings

£29.273m £29.273m
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service monitoring.

TRCP03

Performance 
Appraisals 
completed by 
September 2015 

80% 51%
Red

Apr 15 - 
Sep 15 ↑

This PI has a target completion date of September, therefore the 2015/16 out turn 
of 51% remains, however as at 31 March 2016 performance appraisals have been 
completed for 78% of all staff and 91% of managers. Performance against this 
measure is being reviewed by the Strategic Leadership Team in advance of the 2016 
appraisals cycle. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service 
monitoring.

TRCP04

Sickness Absence: 
The number of 
working days/shifts 
lost due to sickness 
absence (cumulative)

9.75 11.38
Red

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↓ 

The latest verified sickness forecast for 2015/16 is 11.38 (1.63 days above the 9.75 
day target) and 0.84 days above 10.54 days in 2014/15. Management action 
continues to be taken to reduce the level of sickness absence across the Council.  
This includes changes to the Council’s sickness policy and triggers from October 
2015, Strategic Director-led sessions with managers to set expectations and the 
development of an employee wellbeing plan.  On-going performance is being 
monitored closely on a monthly basis to ensure that these activities are having a 
positive impact.  This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service 
monitoring.

P
age 48



7

2015-16 T&R DP 
Performance Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statements (Red or Amber)
Context (Green/where provided) 

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

TRDP06
Suppliers paid within 
30 days or payment 
terms

90.00% 95.49%
Green Mar-16 ↔ 

Business process improvements and project review has led to an increase in 
electronic invoicing and payments, significantly improving performance and 
exceeding the target for the final quarter of 2015/16. This indicator will continue to 
be reviewed through service monitoring.

TRDP07 Local SME suppliers 
paid within 10 days 60.00% N/A N/A N/A

Following business process review and improvement, a number of issues have been 
identified with this measure regarding data quality and the agreed methodology 
currently in place. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service 
monitoring.

TRDP08

The total number of 
extraordinary 
Council, special 
cabinet and 
committee meetings  

15 13
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↑ This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service monitoring.

TRDP09

Reduction in the 
issuing of general 
exception notices 
under the Access to 
Information Rules

8 5
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↑ This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service monitoring.

TRDP10

Reduction in the 
total number of 
published 
supplementary 
agendas for Cabinet 
and Committee 
meetings

25 19
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↑ This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service monitoring.

P
age 49



8

2015-16 T&R DP 
Performance Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statements (Red or Amber)
Context (Green/where provided) 

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

TRDP13

Client finance 
recovered by end of 
month following 
billing

80.00% 74.33%
Red Mar-16 ↑

The overall 2014/15 collection is 85%. Whilst recovery in respect of 2015/16 has 
incrementally improved, performance has fallen short of the year-end target. This 
reflects introduction of charges for more services, some of which met with 
resistance impacting on recovery, staff resource and productivity.  Management 
action is being taken to improve recovery and revise reporting arrangements for 
2016/17 to ensure that it is properly reflective of achievement. With the 
implementation of new software, this work will then include focusing on developing 
enhanced processes which will improve workflow and improved management 
information through enhanced data, leading to improvements in operational 
strategies around the management of debt.  This indicator will continue to be 
reviewed through service monitoring.

TRDP14 Recovery of Council 
Tax 95.6% 95.3%

Amber
Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↔ 

Staffing was recruited to full capacity and targeted actions implemented leading to a 
reduction in outstanding transactions. Business process analysis for smarter working 
and increased collection was undertaken as part of the Transaction Centre Review 
Project. These actions reduced the deficit from 0.9% to 0.2% compared to January 
2016, but the Year-End target was missed by 0.3%. This indicator will continue to be 
reviewed through service monitoring.

TRDP15
Recovery of National 
Non Domestic Rates 
(NNDR)

98.3% 97.2%
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↓ 

Collection was on or above target until the Year-End, where the target was missed by 
1.1% due to being unable to collect late additional debit and early payments evening 
out over 12 instalments. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service 
monitoring.

P
age 50



9

2015-16 T&R DP 
Performance Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statements (Red or Amber)
Context (Green/where provided) 

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

TRDP16
Spend allocation of 
Discretionary 
Housing Payment

100%
100% 

£1,036.5k
Red

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↔ 

The 2015/16 Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) grant funding has been fully 
spent. The residual Local Authority contribution, £294k, will be carried forward to 
supplement the 2016/17 DWP Grant and support people who will face increasing 
difficulties with their housing costs, as Housing Benefit Reforms continue to impact 
on those in receipt of benefit. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through 
service monitoring.

TRDP17 Directorate Revenue 
Budget  £30.1m £25.2m

Green
Apr 15 – 
Mar 16 N/A 

The 2015/16 budget was adjusted from £31.9m to £30.1m to reflect  in year 
revisions to the budget, which related mainly to capital financing adjustments and 
the allocation of remodelling savings. This indicator will continue to be reviewed 
through service monitoring.

TRDP18 Directorate Capital 
Programme £5.7m £5.7m

Green
Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 N/A 

The 2015/16 capital programme was amended during the year to reflect the 
inclusion of slippage from the 2014/15 programme and adjustments / re-profiling 
within the 2015/16 financial year. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through 
service monitoring.

TRDP19 Directorate Savings 
achieved £3.9m £3.9m

Green
Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 N/A 

The 2015/16 budget was adjusted to £3.9m to reflect the reallocation of the £22k 
alley gating saving to the Transformation & Resources Directorate. This indicator will 
continue to be reviewed through service monitoring.

P
age 51



10

2015-16 T&R DP 
Performance Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statements (Red or Amber)
Context (Green/where provided) 

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

TRDP20

Number of 
Information 
Governance 
Incidents (including 
reported 
vulnerabilities which 
could potentially 
result in a breach)

30 38
Amber

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 N/A 

There have been no breaches which required reporting to the Information 
Commissioner’s Office during 2015/16. The Council encourages staff to report 
Information Governance incidents before they become reportable problems, so that 
any issues can be addressed and resolved to reduce the risk to the Council and its 
partners. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through service monitoring.

TRDP22

Average number of 
days to accurately 
process new Benefit 
claims 

24 23
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↔ 

The 2015/16 Year-End performance was ahead of target, but the overall cumulative 
performance of 27 days for 2015/16 fell below the standard set, as a result of 
backlog at the start of the year due to the age of claims, which has now been 
cleared. The Department for Work and Pensions have yet to confirm final Year-End 
position so this return is provisional.  This indicator will continue to be reviewed 
through service monitoring.

TRDP23

Average number of 
days to accurately 
process change in 
circumstance Benefit 
claims

14 3
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↑

The 2015/16 Year-End performance was ahead of target, but the overall cumulative 
performance of 16 days for 2015/16 fell below the standard set, as a result of 
backlog at the start of the year due to the age of claims, which has now been 
cleared. The Department for Work and Pensions have yet to confirm final Year-End 
position so this return is provisional.  This indicator will continue to be reviewed 
through service monitoring.

TRDP24 % grant income 
achieved 99.99% 100.00%

Green
Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↑

The total value of Local Authority overpayments has fallen below the lower threshold 
for attracting a subsidy penalty (income loss). This position is provisional, as it has 
still to be cleared as part of the annual audit process. This indicator will continue to 
be reviewed through service monitoring.

P
age 52



11

2015-16 T&R DP 
Performance Indicators

Year End 
Target 

2015/16

Quarter 4 Year-end Statements (Red or Amber)
Context (Green/where provided) 

PI Ref PI Title Actual Period DoT

TRDP25
£ Identification of 
Fraud and Error 
(FERIS) 

£768K £768K
Green

Apr 15 - 
Mar 16 ↑

The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) national data extracts has confirmed 
that the Q3 baseline was met, and it is expected that the baseline of £768k will be 
marginally exceeded. The DWP have yet to confirm the final Year-End position and as 
such this return is provisional. This indicator will continue to be reviewed through 
service monitoring.

Direction of Travel (DoT) Key ↑ Performance Improving ↓ Performance 
Deteriorating ↔ Performance Sustained 

P
age 53



12

3.2 Projects Report

2015-16 T&R DP Projects Status Q4 2015/16 Progress update 

Continue to transform support 
services, including establishing  
new Transaction Centre

Delivered

The Transaction Centre structure became operational at Cheshire Lines from May 2015 and the Transaction 
Centre Senior Manager came into post July 2015.  
Reviews of business processes and subsequent changes implemented within the operation have streamlined 
support services, reduced backlogs and improved performance.  
Distribution services (mail, courier and scanning) have been under continuous review, and plans are 
underway for the service to move into to more suitable accommodation in Q1.

Implement Strategic Asset 
Management Plan Re-defined

This is on-going as the Council continues to deal with its Delivering Differently and Alternative Delivery 
Models. Works to Star Design and South Annexe are now complete. 

The overall programme of Office Rationalisation works has delivered more efficient working space, 
maximising building occupancy and helping to reduce running costs. Surplus buildings have produced Capital 
Receipts and in some cases the added bonus of New Housing developments.

The Demolition of Acre Lane will be completed on 12th May 2016. The Consultant has been appointed for 
undertaking condition surveys and the survey format agreed. It is anticipated to commence surveys of Leisure 
Assets in May 2016.

This project will be taken forward as part of  ‘Achieving The Vision’ within the Assets Transformation 
Programme. 

Review and revise the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPRs)

Delivered

The revised Contract Procedure Rules have been approved, and were implemented on 1 April 2016.  Briefing 
sessions were offered to all staff, and have been or are scheduled to be delivered to circa 300 officers. A more 
general procurement e-learning session is hoped to be compiled during 2016/17 and made compulsory for all 
officers. This will ensure that all staff are aware of the responsibilities and procedures and that the Council 
conforms with the appropriate regulations.

P
age 54



13

2015-16 T&R DP Projects Status Q4 2015/16 Progress update 

Develop measures to provide 
evidence how or where Equality 
Impact Assessments (EIAs) have 
informed our policy and 
decision making and improved 
outcomes

Re-defined

An equalities template is currently being developed, to be used as part of the business planning process. This 
will highlight where EIA's are being completed and what actions are required to be undertaken to improve 
practice / service delivery. It is anticipated that the programme will completed and agreed by end of April 
2016. The performance indicator / target setting will be taken forward as part of the Equality Plan 2016/2020. 

Implementation of ModGov 
reports management function Delivered The reports Management system roll has been completed and most report authors are now using the system 

to submit reports, however the system will be subject to ongoing review regarding its effectiveness. 

Audit & Risk Committee 
membership Re-defined

The Secretary of State has extended the existing arrangements for Independent Audit Panels and the 
appointment of external auditors under the Local Audit Accountability Act 2014 until April 2018. As such, LA’s 
will be required to have Panels with independent membership in place by 31 Dec 2017. The Local 
Government Association (LGA) is currently undertaking an exercise to evaluate levels of interest amongst 
Local Authorities (LAs) for national collective arrangements. Expressions of interest are required from all LAs 
by September 2016, Wirral have indicated an interest for this type of agreement. The LGA aim to have a 
mechanism in place to award contracts for external audit services by June 2017, removing the need for LAs to 
make their own arrangements and appoint independent Audit Panels.Progress on this project will be subject 
to continuous monitoring by the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Corporate Governance 
Group.

Support the implementation of 
the Transformation Programme Delivered

£28.5m savings were delivered for 2015/16. Proposals for key Transformation Programmes for 2016/17 have 
been developed. Activity is underway to assess the resources required to deliver these. Priorities for 2016/17 
service reviews have been established and work is underway to develop Outline Business Cases for delivery 
models by June 2016.

Support robust budget setting 
processes to deal with financial 
challenges 

Delivered

The accounts were completed and published by deadline of 30/09/15. 

Medium Term Financial Plan was reported to Cabinet 17/12/15 and updated as part of the Council Budget to 
Cabinet 22/02/16.
Budget for 2016/17 was set by Council on 03/03/16. Future years to follow given Government 
announcements in March / April being in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Implement the Council’s Re-defined

An update was reported to T&R Policy and Performance committee 22/03/16: revised and comprehensive 

P
age 55



14

2015-16 T&R DP Projects Status Q4 2015/16 Progress update 

Customer Access Strategy  specification is being drafted before circulation to wider stakeholders for feedback/approval by senior 
leadership team and members.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Alignment with emerging digital and customer contact strategies is also being taken into consideration before 
progressing to any identified procurement. This project will be taken forward as part of the Technology 
Strategy.

People Strategy Re-defined

Work on shaping a new operating model for the Council has been carried out, based on an organisational 
diagnosis and feedback from the LGA Peer review (November 2015). 

In order to ensure that the strategies are developed in line with the emerging organisational structures, a 
short-term culture action plan has been agreed by SLT, focussing on key activities that can be delivered by 
April 2016, for implementation whilst a longer term action plan is developed. This will support the 
implementation of the new operating model, and will include developing a People Strategy to support a 
refreshed leadership and culture framework, linked to the Council’s new operating model. The People 
Strategy is being developed, with input from the Workforce Equality Steering Group, and will be taken 
forward as part of the 'New Organisation Arrangement' project.

Equality Plan - Workforce 
Equality Objectives Re-defined

Progress has been made on this project during 2015/16, including:• Revised reasonable adjustments policy 
and allocation of £25,000 budget to help staff obtain these more quickly.  • Revised Performance Appraisal 
form, that includes best practice elements of the Equality Framework for Local Government and reasonable 
adjustments. • Revised equality profiling form for staff to include recent changes in the law and updated 
information categories, allowing us to meet the legal requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty.• Wirral 
Council becoming one of first local authorities in the country to ensure staff are paid a Living Wage and 
offering companies discounted business rates if they do the same. Some elements of this project have been 
deferred until the new operating model is implemented, but the Head of Human Resources will be publishing 
the current workforce data as at 31st March 2016 as an interim measure. The project will be taken forward as 
part of the Equality Plan 2016/2020.

To review Wirral’s Community 
Safety Strategy, to ensure it 
meets local needs.

Re-defined

Community Safety Partnership Analysts and Wirral Anti- Social Behaviour Team are being co-located with 
Police colleagues within Wallasey Police Station.  This will ensure joint intelligence, shared priorities and 
overcome any duplication or gaps in delivery; supporting the Wirral Plan 2020 pledges and supporting 
strategies, in particular Pledge 19 and it's supporting Strategy "Ensuring Wirral's neighbourhoods are safe".

P
age 56



15

3.3 Financial Report

Revenue Budget

The Transformation and Resources Directorate year end position produced an underspend of £4.9 million on the revised net budget as per the table 
below. In year revisions to the budget related mainly to capital financing adjustments and the allocation of remodelling savings.

Original 
Net Budget

Budget 
Changes In 
year

Revised 
Net 
Budget

Outturn Variance

£ms £ms £ms £ms £ms

T&R 31.9 -1.8 30.1 25.2 -4.9

The most significant element of the underspend was from Treasury Management activity. The continued use of internal cash flow to delay external 
borrowing for the current and past capital programmes has resulted in approximately £4 million of savings in year. The authority temporarily 
substituted the ‘borrowing’ using cash flows derived from reserves and other balances. This policy whilst ‘losing’ investment interest receivable 
(average 0.6%), saved an average 3.5% on borrowing costs plus delayed any principal repayment. 

Other underspends arose from vacancies held across a number of service areas.

Savings agreed in setting the 2015/16 budget led to £3.9 million being removed from the directorate budget. The profile delivery meant that not all 
of this was achieved in year in respect of libraries and asset management. But compensatory underspends from elsewhere within the directorate 
mitigated any shortfalls and led to an overall underspend position for the directorate.  

P
age 57



16

Capital Programme Budget

The Capital Programme was amended during the year to reflect the inclusion of slippage from the 2014/15 programme and adjustments / re-
profiling within the 2015/16 financial year. 

Transformation and Resources
Capital 
Programme 
December 
2015

Outturn 
March 
2016

Variance

£ms £ms £ms
 Transformation & Resources 7.3      5.7  -1.6

The largest element of the directorate’s programme related to £2.2 million spent on refurbishing a significant number of Council properties which 
will lead to their more efficient use. A further £1.5 million was incurred updating information technology systems whilst a similar amount will now be 
re-profiled into the 2016/17 programme. 

P
age 58



1
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Policy Inform: Business 
July 2016

Page 59

Agenda Item 12



2
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Contents

Content Page Number
Introduction 3
Queen’s Speech 2016- Designation to Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees

5

Queen’s Speech 2016- Emerging and Ongoing Legislation 7
Bus Services Bill 8
Local Growth and Jobs Bill 9
Digital Economy Bill 10
Modern Transport Bill 11
High Speed Rail (London-West Midlands) Bill 12
Better Markets Bill 13
Finance Bill 14
Recent National Legislation : Enterprise Act 2016 15
Sources 16
Policy Developments 18

Page 60



3
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Introduction

Wirral Plan:
The Wirral Plan: A 2020 Vision sets out a shared partnership vision to improve outcomes for Wirral 
residents. The Plan focuses on three key priority areas: People, Business and Environment.   

The Wirral Plan Business Priority states:  
“Wirral is a place where employers want to invest and businesses thrive”.

Business Policy Briefing: 
This policy briefing paper is intended to provide Members of the Business Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee with the latest position on emerging policy and legislative developments to support the 
committees work programme and future scrutiny work.

The following table outlines the timetable for the preparation and reporting of policy briefing 
papers:

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Briefings

July              
2016

The first policy briefing will focus predominately on the Queen’s Speech, which 
will establish the Government's legislative programme for the parliamentary 
year ahead. 

September 
2016

The second policy briefing will be produced in September; it will provide an 
update on policy and legislation and will focus on Wirral Implications relevant to 
the government’s programme of legislation as outlined in the previous policy 
briefing.  

January       
2017

The third policy briefing will focus on the Autumn Statement and the Spending 
Review which sets out how Government money will be allocated.  The policy 
briefing will provide an update on policy and legislation and will consider 
relevant implications for Wirral.

May
2017

The fourth policy briefing will focus upon the 2017 Chancellor of Exchequers 
Budget.  The policy briefing will provide an update on policy and legislation and 
will consider relevant implications for Wirral.

The July policy briefing focuses on the policies and legislation that have emerged from the Queens 
speech, which was delivered on 18th May 2016. This policy briefing focuses specifically on policies 
and legislation relating to the Business Priority.   

The Committee may wish to identify specific policy areas to focus upon which are in line with the 
Committee’s work programme. Detailed briefing papers can be prepared for these subject matters 

Page 61



4
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

at the request of the Committee which would be in addition to the regular policy briefing papers 
outlined above.

Page 62



5
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Queen’s Speech 2016- Designation to 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees
On Wednesday 18th May 2016, the Queens Speech was delivered, outlining the Government's 
programme of legislation and policies for the coming year. Below is a list of each individual Bill which 
will have implications for local government that was announced during the speech, including those 
Bills carried over from the 2015-16 session. The list identifies the Overview & Scrutiny committee 
with whose remit the legislation most closely aligns:

Legislative Plans Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Neighbourhood Planning and Infrastructure Bill Business and Environment

Bus Services Bill Business 

Local Growth and Jobs Bill Business 

Digital Economy Bill Business

Modern Transport Bill Business

High Speed Rail Bill Business

Better Markets Bill Business

Children and Social Work Bill People

Education for All Bill People

Higher Education and Research Bill People

National Citizen Service Bill People

Finance Bill People and Business

Policing and Crime Bill People and Environment 

Soft Drinks Industry Levy People and Environment

Lifetime Savings Bill People and Environment

Prison and Courts Reform Bill Environment

Investigatory Powers Bill Environment

Additional Bills that have been announced are outlined below. These will be monitored in relation to 
any emerging implications for Local Government and reported to the relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee as appropriate.

Additional Legislative Plans
Wales Bill
Bill of Rights
Criminal Finances Bill
Counter-Extremism and Safeguarding Bill
Cultural Property (Armed Conflicts) Bill

Page 63



6
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Small Charitable Donations Bill
NHS (Overseas Visitors Charging) Bill

The Bills relevant to the Business priority are discussed in further detail in this paper. 

Page 64



7
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Queen’s Speech 2016- Emerging and 
Ongoing Legislation

Neighbourhood Planning and Infrastructure Bill

“To support the economic recovery, and to create jobs and more apprenticeships, legislation 
will be introduced to ensure Britain has the infrastructure that businesses need to grow.”

• .Synopsis:
• The Neighbourhood Planning and Infrastructure Bill will reform planning and 
give local communities more power and control to shape their own area so that 
we build more houses and give everyone who works hard the chance to buy 
their own home.

Key Points:
• The Bill will include measures to reform and speed up the planning process by 
minimising delays caused by pre-commencement planning conditions.

• A new statutory basis will be introduced for the independent National 
Infrastructure Commission, to help invest in Britain’s long-term future.

• Processes will be streamlined to support neighbourhoods to come together to 
agree plans that will decide where things get built in their local area.

• The compulsory purchase order process will become clearer, fairer and faster 
for all those involved. Including reform of the context within which 
compensation is negotiated. 

• New legislation will enable the privatisation of Land Registry, which will support 
the delivery of a modern, digitally-based land registration service that will 
benefit the Land Registry’s customers. `

Synopsis and Key Points:

Page 65



8
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Bus Services Bill

“Further powers will be devolved to directly elected mayors, including powers governing local 
bus services.”

• .Synopsis:
• The purpose of the Bus Services Bill is to give elected mayors and local 
transport authorities the power to improve bus services for the people who use 
them and help cut congestion. The  Bill was announced in the May 2015 
Queen’s Speech but not introduced during the Parliamentary session. 

Key Points:
• New powers to franchise services will be made available to combined 
authorities with directly elected Mayors to allow them to take control of their 
services as Transport for London does in London. 

• Applications from other local authorities will be considered on a case by case 
basis.

• Bus companies will be required to make data about routes, fares and times 
freely available. This will allow app developers to produce new journey planners 
and other products, giving passengers better information about how to make 
the most of local bus services. 

• Local authorities will be able to use new powers to set required standards of 
service with bus providers, including branding, ticketing and the frequencies of 
services.  

Synopsis and Key Points:

• Buses are England’s most used form of public transport with over 4.65 billion 
journeys completed in financial year 2014 to 2015. Without buses, rush hour 
congestion in city centres would be 21% higher costing millions of pounds in lost 
time.

• The new legislation will mean that software developers can access ‘open data’ 
with route and timetable information, so they can introduce new apps that will 
benefit passengers. It is estimated that new apps that tell passengers when the 
next service will turn up will alone lead to an extra 5 million bus journeys a year.

Further Detail:

Page 66



9
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Local Growth and Jobs Bill

“Allow local authorities to retain business rates, giving them more freedom to invest in local 
communities.”

• .Synopsis:
• The Local Growth and Jobs Bill will deliver the biggest change in local finance 
for decades, giving local authorities full control of the money they raise through 
business rates, so they can attract business and investment to their local areas.

Key Points: 
• Up to £13 billion will be transferred to councils through allowing them to retain 
100% of the business rates they collect.

• The Bill will strengthen local areas the ability to reduce the business rates tax 
rate.

• New measures will be introduced to allow combined authority mayors to levy 
business rate supplements in order to fund infrastructure projects where there 
is the support of local business.

Synopsis and Key Points:

Page 67



10
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Digital Economy Bill

“Create the right for every household to access high speed broadband. 

“Make the United Kingdom a world leader in the digital economy.”

• .Synopsis:
• The Digital Economy Bill will modernise our climate for enterprise, making sure 
Britain remains at the forefront of the global 21st century economy so that 
businesses can continue to create jobs and families remain financially secure.

Key Points:
• The Bill will give every household a legal right to a fast broadband connection.
• New laws will be introduced to help telecommunications providers build the 
infrastructure needed for faster broadband and better mobile networks.

• A new power for Ofcom to order communications providers to release data in 
the interests of the consumer and competition. This will help consumers to 
make informed choices.

• Consumers will be automatically compensated when things go wrong with their 
broadband service.

• New measures will make switching providers easier for consumers by allowing 
Ofcom to require communications companies to coordinate switches on behalf 
of customers.

• The Bill will reform the way government uses data to deliver better public 
services and produce world-leading research and statistics.

Synopsis and Key Points:

• New evidence published on 25 May 2016 shows that consumers appreciate 
quick and reliable switching, on an agreed date. 

• Following this the government is taking the first step towards consistently 
quicker switching across all major services by setting out proposals which could 
allow consumers to switch provider in a week or less. The government is asking 
consumers and industry for evidence of how these proposals could be 
implemented and new rules could be in place as soon as next year.

• Culture Secretary John Whittingdale said:
“We are more reliant on broadband and phone services than ever before. So we 
want it to be as easy as possible for consumers to spot the best deal for them, 
and switch providers quickly and easily if they want to. The measures we are 
introducing will help make sure consumers are better informed about the 
quality of these services and the switching process is much simpler.

Further Detail:

Page 68



11
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Modern Transport Bill

“Ensure the United Kingdom is at the forefront of technology for new forms of transport.”

• .Synopsis:
• The Modern Transport Bill will put Britain at the forefront of the modern global 
transport developments as part of the country’s long term economic plan and 
ensure new technology delivers better, safer journeys, while keeping Britain at 
the cutting edge of international transport technology.

Key points:
• The Bill will cut red tape and put the right framework in place to allow 
innovation to flourish.

• New legislation will enable the future development of the UK’s first commercial 
spaceports.

• New laws will be introduced to make the UK ready to pioneer driverless cars.
• New rules will bring safe commercial and personal drone flight for households 
and businesses a step closer. 

• Protection for customers will be improved by updating ATOL, the UK’s financial 
protection scheme for holidays by clarifying the 1992 legislation that pre-dates 
people booking their holidays on the internet.

Synopsis and Key Points:

Page 69



12
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

High Speed Rail (London-West Midlands) Bill

• .Synopsis:
• The High Speed Rail Bill will carry over from the previous Parliamentary session. 
The purpose of the Bill is to provide the Government with the legal powers to 
construct and operate Phase One of High Speed 2 (HS2). On becoming an Act, it 
will give the Government deemed planning permission for the railway between 
London and the West Midlands.

Key points:
• HS2 will free up space on our currently crowded rail network; this is vital to 
sustainable economic growth.

• It will also improve connectivity, helping to rebalance the economy.
• And help stimulate urban regeneration, create new jobs and boost skills.

Synopsis and Key Points:

• On 9 May 2016 the government announced details of nearly £80 million in 
funding to support the creation of 5 new National Colleges which will ensure the 
UK has skilled people in industries crucial to economic growth, including high 
speed rail, nuclear, onshore oil and gas, digital skills and the creative industries.

• The National College for High Speed Rail will provide the specialist training, 
skills and qualifications required to build HS2 and future rail infrastructure 
projects.

• Construction of the National College for High Speed Rail began on 9 May on its 
two sites in Doncaster and Birmingham. The College is on track to open its doors 
to students in September 2017.

• Minister of State for Transport Robert Goodwill, said:
“This shows the transformational effect that HS2 is already having on our 
country - boosting skills, generating jobs and supporting economic growth”. 

Further Detail:

Page 70



13
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Better Markets Bill

“Improve Britain’s competitiveness.”

• .Synopsis:
• The Better Markets Bill will open up markets, boost competition, give 
consumers more power and choice and make economic regulators work better. 

Key Points:
• The Bill will encourage consumers to switch providers and get a better deal, 
supporting the manifesto commitment to help keep bills as low as possible.

• It will speed up the decision making process for competition investigations and 
make the whole process easier for businesses and better for consumers.

• More power will be given to competition authorities to take on anti-
competitive behaviour.

• The landscape for economic regulation will be improved. 
• Steps will be taken to ensure open and competitive markets keep costs low and 
deliver for bill payers.

• To help businesses regulatory processes will be simplified and unnecessary 
requirements removed.  

Synopsis and Key Points:

• On 25 May 2016 the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills has 
published a series of proposals seeking views on the best way to deliver them. 
These include:
  - Proposals for a 7 day period within which people can switch providers across
    a range of key services, and exploring what more can be done to give
    consumers the power to compare products and switch quickly.
  - Considering whether or not the landscape in regulated sectors can be
    improved to help consumers when things go wrong, and looking at measures
    to enhance the current system.
  - Promoting competition and opening up markets to make the UK’s
    competition regime even faster and more decisive.

• Business Secretary Sajid Javid said:
“I want to create an environment that backs consumers by promoting 
competition. By opening up markets we can ensure consumers get the best deal 
possible for the services they need. The government is committed to stripping 
out burdensome rules and empowering people to make the best decisions 
available to them.”

Further Detail:

Page 71



14
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Finance Bill

• .Synopsis:
• The purpose of the Finance Bill is to introduce measures to provide opportunity 
for families who work hard and save; back British businesses; and tackle 
multinational tax avoidance.

Key points:
• The personal allowance will be increased to £11,500 and the higher rate 
threshold to £45,000.

• A new personal savings allowance will be introduced so that 95% of taxpayers 
will pay no tax on the first £1,000 of savings income if they are a basic rate 
taxpayer.

• Corporation tax will be cut to 17% in 2020.
• Radical action will be taken on the oil and gas tax regime to safeguard jobs and 
encourage investment.

• New rules will be introduced to address hybrid mismatch arrangements and 
ensure payments for the use of intellectual property based overseas are subject 
to tax.

• New measures will ensure that profits from the development of UK property 
are always subject to UK tax.

Synopsis and Key Points:

• The Finance Bill was introduced into Parliament on 24 March 2016.

Further Detail:

Page 72



15
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Recent National Legislation

Enterprise Act 2016

• Synopsis:
The Enterprise Bill received Royal Assent on 4 May 2016 and is now an Act of 
Parliament.  

The Enterprise Act 2016 makes provision relating to the promotion of enterprise 
and economic growth; provision about Sunday opening hours and Sunday 
working; and provision restricting exit payments in relation to public sector 
employment.

The new legislation includes measures to reduce regulation on small businesses 
in a bid to boost job creation and help for small firms to resolve issues such as 
late payment. Additional measures under the Enterprise Act will reform the 
business rates appeals system; enhance shop workers’ rights to opt out of 
working on Sundays; and pave the way for bringing private capital in to the 
Green Investment Bank. 

Synopsis:

Page 73



16
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

 Sources

Queen’s Speech 2016: what it means for you, Government website, 18th May 2016 – Outlines the 
Bills announced in the Queens Speech 2016 

Queen’s Speech: 18th May 2016, LGiU, 18th May 2016 – An explanation of the Bills announced in the 
Queens Speech 2016

Queens Speech 2016: background briefing notes, Government website, 18th May 2016 – More 
detailed briefing notes on the Bills announced in the Queen’s Speech 2016

Bus Services Bill to help deliver more regular services for passengers, Government website – Outlines 
the benefits of the Bus Services Bill 

Government considering plans to make 7 day switching a reality across more markets, Government 
website, 25th May 2016 – Outlines government plans to make switching providers quicker and easier 
across a range of sectors.

Government confirms £80 million for National Colleges to deliver the workforce of tomorrow, 
Government website, 9th May 2016 – Details funding announced for the National College for High 
Speed Rail.

Major step forward for National College for High Speed Rail as construction starts in Birmingham and 
Doncaster, Government website, 9th May 2016 – Outlines the start of construction of the National 
College for High Speed Rail. 

Queens Speech

Buses Services Bill

Digital Economy Bill

High Speed Rail (London-West Midlands) Bill

Page 74

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/queens-speech-2016-what-it-means-for-you/queens-speech-2016-what-it-means-for-you
http://www.lgiu.org.uk/briefing/queens-speech-18th-may-2016/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/queens-speech-2016-background-briefing-notes
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/bus-services-bill-to-help-deliver-more-regular-services-for-passengers
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-considering-plans-to-make-7-day-switching-a-reality-across-more-markets
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-considering-plans-to-make-7-day-switching-a-reality-across-more-markets
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-confirms-80-million-for-national-colleges-to-deliver-the-workforce-of-tomorrow
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/government-confirms-80-million-for-national-colleges-to-deliver-the-workforce-of-tomorrow
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/major-step-forward-for-national-college-for-high-speed-rail-as-construction-starts-in-birmingham-and-doncaster
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/major-step-forward-for-national-college-for-high-speed-rail-as-construction-starts-in-birmingham-and-doncaster


17
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Better Markets Bill to arm consumers with more power and choice, Government website, 25th May 
2016 – Details the launch of a consultation to seek views on proposals to improve Britain’s markets  

Enterprise Act 2016, Parliamentary website - Previous debates on all stages of the Enterprise Act and 
any latest updates

Enterprise Act becomes law, Government website, 4th May 2016 – Outlines the Enterprise Act as it 
receives Royal Assent  

Enterprise Act 2016

Better Markets Bill

Page 75

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/better-markets-bill-to-arm-consumers-with-more-power-and-choice
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/better-markets-bill-to-arm-consumers-with-more-power-and-choice
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2015-16/enterprise.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/enterprise-act-becomes-law


18
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Policy Developments

Briefing: Government’s spending with SMEs – NAO Report

The National Audit Office (NAO) has published a report, ‘Government’s spending with small and 
medium sized enterprises’, setting out the progress made by central government in increasing its 
spending with small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs). 

The Cabinet Office has estimated that 27% of central government’s procurement spending (or £12.1 
billion of a total of £45 billion per annum) reached SMEs in 2014-15, surpassing the government’s 
target of 25%. The aim is to increase this to 33% by 2020. However, the NAO cannot be certain 
whether the amount spent with SMEs has indeed increased since 2010 due to a series of changes to 
how the target is measured.

The NAO concluded that the government will be more successful if it takes a more focused approach 
by identifying those areas of government spending where SMEs can have the most impact and to 
use best practice to inform future decisions, as wider trends in government contracting mean that, 
although SMEs can bid for work, they are often not suitable to deliver it.

Source: Mark Upton, Briefing: Government’s spending with SMEs – NAO Report, LGiU, 18th April 
2016
 

Briefing: Economic Prosperity Boards

The Legislative Reform, the Combined Authorities and Economic Prosperity Bands and the Cities and 
Local Government Devolution Act 2016 have revised some of the parameters around Economic 
Prosperity Bands and Combined Authorities by reducing some of the ‘burdens’ in their formation 
and development, and enhancing some aspects of their scope and influence. 

A key reason why there has not been a greater take up of EPB model to date is that beyond greater 
control of EU structural funding no specific power or devolution deals have been offered to 
encourage their wider adoption. However, when one analyses the economic development and 
regeneration elements of devolution deals with CA’s, there is no legal reason why such deal could 
not be done with EPB’s.

Source: Mark Barrow, Briefing: Economic Prosperity Bands, LGiU, 21st June 2016

Page 76

http://www.lgiu.org.uk/briefing/governments-spending-with-smes-nao-report/
http://www.lgiu.org.uk/briefing/governments-spending-with-smes-nao-report/
http://www.lgiu.org.uk/briefing/economic-prosperity-boards/


19
Strategy, Policy, Performance and Scrutiny Team

Briefing: Strengthening Local Government Transparency – CLG 
Consultation 

In 2009, the Government issued the first Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on 
Data Transparency in 2011. On the 12th May 2016, a consultation was launched which explored the 
next steps to improve town hall transparency and increasing accountability of those entrusted with 
public resource and assets. 

The consultation argues the use of local data should be taken beyond town hall transparency and 
moving more towards its use for enhanced scrutiny of the use of public assets and resources, 
including through better comparison of data. The consultation covers the following issues;
 Land
 Procurement
 Contracts
 Parking
 Method of publication 

Source: Stephen Bray, Briefing: Strengthening Local Government Transparency – CLG Consultation, 
LGiU, 21st June 2016  

 

Page 77

http://www.lgiu.org.uk/briefing/strengthening-local-government-transparency-clg-consultation/
http://www.lgiu.org.uk/briefing/strengthening-local-government-transparency-clg-consultation/


This page is intentionally left blank



1

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 JULY 2016

REPORT TITLE APPOINTMENT OF THE HIGHWAYS 
REPRESENTATION PANEL

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF TRANSFORMATION 
AND RESOURCES

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to enable this Committee to undertake a review of the 
Highways Representation Panel and to appoint members to serve on that panel if it is to 
be retained in 2016-2017. Standing Order 33 (1) requires that Committees should keep the 
need for panels under review and, in particular, the position must be reviewed at the first 
meeting of a Committee in each municipal year.

Unless appointed as full members, the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of the three largest 
political groups represented on the Council are entitled to attend meetings of all 
Committees, Sub-Committees and Panels, with the right to speak at the invitation of the 
Chair (Standing Order 25(5)).

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Committee is requested –

(1) to confirm that the Highways Representation Panel be re-appointed for 2016-
2017 with the terms of reference identified.

(2) to appoint members to serve on the Highways Representation Panel in 2016-
2017, including the appointment of the Chair and named deputies.

Page 79

Agenda Item 13



2

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To enable the appointment of a Highways Representation Panel to consider 
objections and unresolved petitions relating to all highway and traffic management 
matters.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

No other options were considered beyond those outlined in the report.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Panel’s terms of reference are as follows:

(i). To consider objections relating to all highway and traffic management matters 
governed by the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, whether subject to a traffic 
regulation order or otherwise, including (but not limited to) the following:

 
 waiting and parking restrictions;
 speed limits;
 one way traffic orders;
 weight limits
 prohibiting or restricting the use of heavy commercial vehicles;
 signalised and non-signalised pedestrian/cycle/horse crossings;
 provision of off street parking and parking on roads, footpaths, pavements 

and verges;
 traffic signs and traffic signals
 bus lanes and taxi ranks

 
(ii). unresolved petitions relating to highway and traffic management matters.

 
(iii). and to then make recommendations to the Business Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee (effective 27 June 2016 – as a result of Review of Council’s 
Scrutiny Arrangements).

3.2 Membership

The membership of the Highways Representation Panel, since its establishment in 
2009 has been three members, the Chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee and 
usually the two Party Spokespersons, or their nominees. In 2015-2016 the 
membership was as follows:

Members Deputies
 
 1 Conservative Steve Williams (Chair) Gerry Ellis
  John Hale
 Andrew Hodson
  Tracey Smith *
  Adam Sykes
 Kathy Hodson

Page 80



3

David Elderton
  Eddie Boult

1 Labour Mike Sullivan  Jerry Williams
 Jim Crabtree *

Matt Daniel *
  Rob Gregson *
 Anita Leech

Steve Niblock *
 Denise Realey

Jean Stapleton
  
 
1 Liberal Democrat Dave Mitchell  Alan Brighouse

Chris Carubia
Phil Gilchrist
Stuart Kelly
Pat Williams *

             

* please note those Members marked no longer serve as elected members and will 
require nominations from political groups to serve as Panel deputies.

                        
3.3 The Panel is an advisory panel and therefore does not need to be politically 

proportionate.

3.4 The Panel’s recommendations are referred to the Business Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (effective 27 June 2016) for consideration. The Committee may 
approve, amend, substitute or reject a Panel’s recommendation(s). All approved 
and / or amended recommendations by the Committee are referred to the relevant 
Cabinet Member for a formal decision to be made.

3.5 Members should note that the panel usually meets during the daytime. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

The Panel was first appointed in June 2009 (minute 6 refers) to enable the 
streamlining of the decision making process and to hear public representations and 
receive officer reports.

Page 81



4

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION
 
Not applicable.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATION

No because there is no relevance to equality.

REPORT AUTHOR: Patrick Sebastian
Principal Committee Officer
telephone:  (0151) 691 8424
email:  patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk

 

APPENDICES - none

REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY 
Council Meeting Date
Regeneration and Environment Policy and Performance 
Committee
Regeneration and Environment Policy and Performance 
Committee
Regeneration and Environment Policy and Performance 
Committee
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

14 July 2015

22 July 2014

10 July 2013

26 June 2012
7 June 2011

Page 82

mailto:patricksebastian@wirral.gov.uk


BUSINESS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
12 July 2016

REPORT TITLE: SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME REPORT

REPORT OF: THE CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

REPORT SUMMARY
This report explains the process of developing a scrutiny work programme for the 
new municipal year. The Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee, in cooperation 
with the other two Overview & Scrutiny Committees, is responsible for proposing and 
delivering an annual work programme. This work programme should align with the 
corporate priorities of the Council, in particular the delivery of the Wirral Plan 
pledges which are within the remit of the Committee. 
   
The report describes the process to enable members to deliver and manage the 
work programme for the municipal year. 

RECOMMENDATION/S
1. Committee is requested to suggest any topics for inclusion on the Business 

Overview & Scrutiny work programme for the 2016/17 municipal year. 

2. Committee is requested to provide delegated authority to the Chair, Vice 
Chair and Spokespersons to give further detailed consideration to the 
Committee’s work programme prior to the next scheduled Committee meeting 
in September. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 14



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

To ensure members of the Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee have 
the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not Applicable

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME AND THE WIRRAL PLAN
The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its 
partners. The programme will be informed by:

 The Wirral Plan pledges
 The Council’s transformation programme
 The Council’s Forward Plan
 Service performance information
 Risk management information
 Public or service user feedback
 Referrals from Cabinet / Council

To maximise impact, scrutiny should ensure that topics of significance are 
prioritised in the work programme. During the next five years, the delivery of 
the Wirral Plan will form the highest priority for the Council and its partners. 
The scrutiny committee model has been modified to reflect the changes in 
Council priorities towards delivering improved outcomes for residents. 
Therefore, it is important for scrutiny to maximise the opportunity for non-
executive members to play a constructive role in supporting the effective 
delivery of the Wirral Plan and the Council’s Transformation Programme, 
whilst ensuring decision-makers are held to account.

It is proposed that the scrutiny work programme will focus on the Wirral Plan 
and will be owned by the three Overview & Scrutiny Committees. The 
priorities identified by members of the Business Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee will form a key element of the overall work programme. This 
approach will ensure the most effective use of scrutiny’s resources. 

Page 84



The Wirral Plan pledges and associated strategies of particular relevance to 
the Business Overview & Scrutiny Committee are:

Pledge Strategies
Greater job opportunities in 
Wirral
Workforce skills match 
business needs

Increased inward investment

Thriving small businesses

Vibrant tourism economy

Wirral Growth Plan
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About
%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Wirral%20Growt
h%20Plan.pdf

Transport and technology 
infrastructure fit for the future

Transport Strategy
Digital Strategy

Assets and buildings are fit 
for purpose for Wirral’s 
businesses

Assets Strategy

Given the scope of the pledges and supporting strategies, it will be necessary 
for members to identify specific aspects of pledge delivery upon which to 
focus. As a starting point for discussion, members may want to consider the 
following: 

 The viability of the partnership arrangements to deliver the pledge
 Specific service areas related to a pledge / strategy
 The delivery of specific actions listed in the Action Plan for each 

strategy
 Specific issues highlighted in the regular performance monitoring 

reports
 The impact of the delivery of an aspect of a pledge on outcomes for 

residents.   

Page 85

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Wirral%20Growth%20Plan.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Wirral%20Growth%20Plan.pdf
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/sites/default/files/all/About%20the%20council/Wirral%20Plan/Wirral%20Growth%20Plan.pdf


3.2 PRINCIPLES FOR PRIORITISATION
The annual work programme should align with the corporate priorities of the 
Council, in particular the Wirral Plan pledges. Good practice suggests that, in 
order to maximise the impact of scrutiny, it is necessary to prioritise proposed 
topics within the work programme. Members may find the following criteria 
helpful in providing a guideline towards ensuring that the most significant 
topics are prioritised:

Principles for 
Prioritisation

Does the topic have a direct link with one of the 
2020 pledges?Wirral Plan Will the review lead to improved outcomes for 
Wirral residents?

Public Interest Does the topic have particular importance for 
Wirral Residents?

Transformation Will the review support the transformation of the 
Council?
Is the subject matter an area of significant spend 
or potential saving?Financial 

Significance Will the review support the Council in achieving 
its savings targets?
Is this the most appropriate time for this topic to 
be scrutinised?Timeliness / 

Effectiveness Will the review be a good use of Council 
resources?

By assessing prospective topics using these criteria, the Committees can 
prioritise an effective work programme that ensures relevance and the highest 
potential to enhance outcomes for residents.

3.3 DELIVERING THE WORK PROGRAMME
It is proposed that the work programme will consist of a combination of 
scrutiny reviews, standing items and requested officer reports. Regular work 
programme update reports will provide the committee with an opportunity to 
plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. 

It is anticipated that the work programme will be delivered through a 
combination of:

 Scrutiny reviews undertaken by task & finish groups
 Evidence days and workshops
 Committee reports provided by officers
 Standing committee agenda items, for example, performance 

monitoring and financial monitoring
 Spotlight sessions  

Page 86



As some of the selected topics may well cut across the Wirral Plan themes, it 
is anticipated that some of the scrutiny topics may be of interest to members 
of more than one committee. In these circumstances, opportunities for 
members of more than one committee to work jointly on an item of scrutiny 
work will be explored.  

During the municipal year, it is proposed that regular work programme review 
sessions will be held between the Chairs and Spokespersons of the 
Committee in order to effectively manage the work programme. This would 
help to ensure that higher priority topics are given greatest prominence on the 
work programme as it progresses and is modified during the year. 

3.4 TRANSFER OF SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS
Members will be aware that the Cabinet report relating to future scrutiny 
arrangements (6th June 2016) set out a proposal to describe how existing 
pieces of work being carried forward from 2015/16 would transfer into the new 
scrutiny committee model. The items relevant to the Business Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee are set out below:    

Item Former Committee Timescale  
Tourism  Scrutiny 
Review

Regeneration and 
Environment Policy & 
Performance Committee

Reporting  to 
September Committee

Disaster Recovery 
Scrutiny Review

Transformation and 
Resources Policy & 
Performance Committee

Report included on 
this agenda

Freedom of 
Information 
Scrutiny Review

Transformation and 
Resources Policy & 
Performance Committee

Review not yet 
commenced

Wirral Waters 
Notice of Motion

Regeneration and 
Environment Policy & 
Performance Committee

Notice of Motion 
included on this 
agenda

Reducing 
Pedestrian 
Casualties Notice 
of Motion

Regeneration and 
Environment Policy & 
Performance Committee

Notice of Motion 
included on this 
agenda

3.5 FURTHER DEVELOPMENT OF THE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
In line with the new remit of the Committee and the principles for prioritisation, 
as described above, Members are requested to suggest possible topics for 
inclusion in the work programme. Committee Members should also consider 
how best to further develop the work programme in advance of the next 
scheduled Committee meeting in September. This could be achieved by 
Committee providing delegated authority to the Chair, Vice Chair and 
Spokespersons to provide further detailed input to the work programme’s 
development.   

Page 87



4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Not Applicable

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Not Applicable

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
The delivery of the scrutiny work programme will be met from within existing 
resources. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
Not Applicable

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 
Not Applicable

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 
implications.

REPORT AUTHOR: Michael Lester
Scrutiny Support
0151 691 8628
email:  michaellester@wirral.gov.uk

 
APPENDICES: None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 88

mailto:michaellester@wirral.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Notice of Motion: Setting Clear Targets for Wirral Waters - referred from Council 14 March
	AmendmenttoNoticesofMotion_Wirral Waters

	5 Notice of Motion: Reducing Pedestrian Casualties in Wirral - referred from Council 14 March
	6 Transforming Wirral
	8 Street Lighting - Scottish Power Performance
	9 Resident Parking Policy
	11 2015/16 Regeneration % Environment and Transformation & Resources Directorate Plan Closedown Reports
	2015-16 R&E Directorate Plan Year End Report v4 Final
	2015-16 T&R Directorate Plan Year End Report_v1 Final

	12 Policy Inform: Business
	13 Appointment of the Highways Representation Panel
	14 Scrutiny Work Programme Report

